
 
Note:  Unless approved, Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors will be no longer than 3 hours in length at any 
single session.  INTERPRETERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED:  To request interpreter services for this meeting call 
503‐852‐6983 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR SESSION AGENDA 

LOCATION; YCSD BOARDROOM, 120 N LARCH PL, YAMHILL OR 97148 

Or VIA ZOOM https://zoom.us/j/97079164617 

 

Thursday, August 12th, 2021              Regular Session:  6:00pm 

AGENDA 

 

I. Flag Salute 
II. Call to Order Regular Session  
III. Introduction: Steve Cooper – YCHS Principal and Amanda Dallas – YCES Principal 
IV. Individuals, Delegations, Recognitions, and Communications 

A. YCES – Amanda Dallas –Verbal Report 
B. YCIS – Matt Wiles & Chad Tollefson – Verbal Report 
C. YCHS – Steve Cooper & Scott Henderson – Verbal Report 
 
 

Public Comment – The Board welcomes you to its monthly meeting.  We ask that you complete an Intent to Speak Form by 

sending an email to the Board Secretary at vertnert@ycschools.org.  The Board will receive public comments at this time but 

will defer issues to the appropriate administrator.  During public comment, the Board listens but neither discusses, nor 

responds to questions and concerns.  Speakers are limited to three minutes. 

 

V. Review of Agenda (Action Item) 

 

VI. Regular Session‐ Consent Agenda (Action Item)  

A. Approval of Board of Directors minutes (pg.1) 

1. Regular meeting July 8th, 2021  

B. Personnel (pg.3) 

 

VII. Announcements and Reports 

A. Superintendent’s Report – Clint Raever – Verbal Report 

B. District Facilities Report‐ Clint Raever for Todd Hendrickson – Verbal Report 

C. List of Bills for July 2021 – Tami Zigler (Action Item) (pg.4) 

 

VIII. New Business 

A. Budget Committee member appointment (Action Item) (pg.8) 
B. FFA National Convention Approval (Action Item)  
C. Oregon English Language Learner State Report (Action Item) (pg.9) 
D. Bank Account signers‐ Resolutions 2022‐2 (Action Item) (pg.44) 
E. All Staff In‐Service Breakfast – August 30: 7:30‐8 am 
F. First Day of School Assignments – September 7th 2021 

 
IX. Board of Directors Comments 

X. Adjournment 



Note:  Unless approved, Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors will be no longer than 3 hours in length at any single 
session.  INTERPRETERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED:  To request interpreter services for this meeting call 503‐852‐6983 at 
least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

         BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 LOCATION; YCSD BOARDROOM, 120 N LARCH PL, YAMHILL OR 97148 

  Or VIA ZOOM https://zoom.us/j/97915575135 

Thursday, July 8, 2021  Regular Session:  6:00pm 

Minutes 

I. Flag Salute
II. Call to Order by Susan FitzGerald @ 6pm
III. Individuals, Delegations, Recognitions, and Communications

IV. Review of Agenda

J. Egland motioned to approve the agenda as presented. E. Galyean seconded. All in favor, motion carried.

Swearing in of Board Members    

S. fitzGerald swore in Ken Watson, Jami Egland, Erin Galyean & JaJetta Dumdi

V. Nominate & Approve Board Chair & Vice Chair

J. Egland motioned to nominate and approve S. FitzGerald to serve as Board Chair for the 2021‐2022 School Year.

K. Watson seconded. All in favor, motion carried.

S. FitzGerald motioned to nominate and approve J. Egland to serve as Board Vice Chair for the 2021‐2022 School

Year.  E. Galyean seconded. All in favor, motioned carried.

VI. Appoint committee members

E. Galyean moved to appoint _K. Watson_ & _JaJetta Dumdi_ to the Negotiations Committee.

J. Egland seconded. All in favor, motion carried.

J. Dumdi moved  to appoint  J. Egland & E. Galyean  to  the Policy Committee. K. Watson seconded. All  in  favor,

motion carried.

VII. 2021‐2022 Appointment & Designations

K. Watson moved to accept the 2021‐2022 Appointments and Designations as presented.

E. Galyean seconded. All in favor, motion carried.

VIII. Approve Meeting Schedule

E. Galyean moved to accept the Board Meeting Calendar with following changes:

Nov 11th to Nov 10th

Feb 11th to Feb 10th

March 11th to March 10th

April 8th to April 14th

May 13th to May 12th

June 10th to June 9th 

1



Note:  Unless approved, Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors will be no longer than 3 hours in length at any single 
session.  INTERPRETERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED:  To request interpreter services for this meeting call 503‐852‐6983 at 
least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

IX. Regular Session‐ Consent Agenda

A. Approval of Board of Directors minutes

1. Regular meeting June 10, 2021

B. Enrollment report

C. Personnel

J. Egland motioned to approve the Consent agenda as presented. E. Galyean seconded. All in favor, motion

carried.

X. Announcements and Reports

A. Superintendent’s Report – Clint Raever:

‐Summer school @ all 3 school‐ Great turn out and lots of positive feedback

‐Legislative update: State School fund @ 9.3 billion

‐Ready Schools, Safe Leaners: Mask restrictions lifted as of June 30th. All rules and guidelines are not mandated

but strongly advised.

‐YC Tigers are the 2021 3A State Boys Basketball Champs!

B. Financial Report and List of Bills for June 2021 – Tami Zigler

E. Galyean motioned to accept the Financial Report and List of Bills for June 2021 as presented.

J. Egland seconded. All in favor, motion carried.

C. District Facilities – Todd Hendrickson:

‐Dome locker rooms moving along and looking at possible completion by Aug 3rd.

‐ Repairs and painting still needing to take place but even with limited staff and budget constraints,

  Todd feels we are looking good for the start of the year.  

XI. New Business

A. Account Signers – Umpqua Bank Accounts – Resolution 2021‐01

E. Galyean motioned to approve Resolution 2021‐01 for the authorizations for the Umpqua bank accounts as

presented. K. Watson seconded. All in favor, motion carried.

B. Account Signers – First Federal Bank Accounts ‐ Resolution 2021‐02

E. Galyean motioned to approve Resolution 2021‐02 for the authorizations for the First Federal bank account as
presented. K. Watson seconded. All in favor, motion carried.

C. Account Signers – Other Accounts (LGIP POOL, QZAB 2007) – Resolution 2021‐03

E. Galyean motioned  to  approve  Resolution  2021‐03  for  the  authorizations  for  the  other  bank  accounts  as
presented. K. Watson seconded. All in favor, motion carried.

XII. Board of Directors Comment

‐Set Board retreat/training for August 16th & 17th. 5pm ‐8pm

‐K. Watson  would  like  to  have  further  conversation  on  why  YC  requires  2  more  credits  to  graduate  than  our

surrounding schools and what impact that has had on our seniors.

  With no further discussion, Meeting adjourned at 7:12pm by S. FitzGerald.  

   Minutes by:  Tina Vertner, Board Secretary 

2



Yamhill Carlton School District  
Human Resources  
Board Report 
August 12, 2021 

New Hires  
Candy Fetch, YCHS Lead Secretary 
Cheyenne McNeely, 2nd grade teacher 
Joe Johnson, Director of Nutrition Services 

Resign/Retire/Term Employees 
Emily Chadwick,  2nd grade teacher 
Megan Burnett, YCHS Science Teacher 
Lisa Heatherly,  Title 1 Teacher 
Brenna Diede, District Office Communications Specialist  
Brandi Blanco, Health Assistant 
Heather Roberts, YCIS Dean of Students/ HS Boys Basketball Coach 
Robin O’Farrell, YCHS IA 
Retiree: 
Tina Hoyt, Kindergarten Teacher 

Currently Open Positions 
Multiple IA positions open
HS Science Teacher 
IS Science Teacher 
6th grade Teacher 
Kindergarten Teacher 
Title 1 Teacher 
Part Time YCES PE Teacher 
ELL IA 
Part Time Kitchen Helper 
YCHS Boys Basketball Coach 
Dean Of Students 

3



100 - GENERAL FUND
0 $271.06AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

59280 $5,946.00AVEANNA HEALTHCARE

0 $110.00BOTTEN'S EQUIPMENT RENTAL INC

0 $701.09BRITTANI JOHNSON

0 $2,304.72CARRUTH COMPLIANCE CONSULTING INC

0 $150.36CDW-GOVERNMENT, INC

0 $186.41CENTURY LINK

59281 $5,521.34CITY OF YAMHILL

59282 $1,229.00CLIMATE CONTROL

59283 $1,200.00COGNIA INC

59284 $1,617.00COSA

59295 $4,165.00COSA

0 $154.00D-N-D ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS

59274 $394.24DEPT CONSUMER & BUSINESS SERVICES

0 $2,802.62DUDE SOLUTIONS INC

59296 $278.00FLASHALERT NEWSWIRE

0 $10,500.00FORECAST 5 ANALYTICS INC

59297 $73.40FS.COM

59298 $3,155.00GARRETT, HEMANN, ROBERTSON

0 $3,568.95INTRADO INTERACTIVE SERVICES CORP

59285 $12.26JOSTENS

0 $639.90KONE INC

59286 $0.00LAPINE HIGH SCHOOL

0 $43,270.68MID COLUMBIA BUS CO., INC

0 $798.66NEWS REGISTER

59287 $150.00OETC

59299 $2,503.00OSBA

Yamhill-Carlton School District No. 1

Approval of Bills Report

Criteria: 07/01/2021From Check Date: 07/31/2021To: ALLVoucher:
900To:

Fiscal Year:   2021-2022

Report Sort: FUND

Check Number Vendor Amount

100From Fund: Page Break Exclude Invoice
Description

Printed: 08/09/2021 9:08:10 AM rptApprovalOfBillsCheckReport: 2021.1.18 Page: 1



100 - GENERAL FUND
59288 $187,076.00PACE

0 $1,595.08PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION (LEASE)

59275 $2,585.00PAYSCHOOLS

59300 $8,840.22PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC

0 $10,419.20POWERSCHOOL GROUP LLC

59301 $682.48RECOLOGY WESTERN OREGON GARBAGE

59289 $517.50RUDNICK ELECTRIC SIGNS LLC

0 $28,799.46SAIF CORPORATION

0 $152.10SCENARIO LEARNING LLC

59277 $675.00TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC

59279 $17,402.00WHA INSURANCE AGENCY INC

59291 $5,807.59YAMHILL COUNTY CLERK

0 $16.93YAMHILL SHELL STATION

59292 $75.07YAMHILL SHELL STATION

59293 $730.46ZIPLY FIBER

$357,076.78Total for 100 - GENERAL FUND

212 - ESSER II FUNDS 2020-2023
0 $71.94AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

$71.94Total for 212 - ESSER II FUNDS 2020-2023

214 - OR SUMMER SCHOOL GRANTS
0 $11,574.02AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

59287 $7,826.40OETC

$19,400.42Total for 214 - OR SUMMER SCHOOL
GRANTS

233 - MEASURE 98
0 $589.64AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

Yamhill-Carlton School District No. 1

Approval of Bills Report

Criteria: 07/01/2021From Check Date: 07/31/2021To: ALLVoucher:
900To:

Fiscal Year:   2021-2022

Report Sort: FUND

Check Number Vendor Amount

100From Fund: Page Break Exclude Invoice
Description

Printed: 08/09/2021 9:08:10 AM rptApprovalOfBillsCheckReport: 2021.1.18 Page: 2



$589.64Total for 233 - MEASURE 98

250 - FOOD SERVICES
0 $113.00GOODY MAN DISTRIBUTING INC

0 $539.20OCNC

0 $703.31SPRING VALLEY DAIRY INC

59290 $295.78SYSCO FOOD SERVICES

59303 $486.89SYSCO FOOD SERVICES

59276 $2,090.00THE CLM GROUP, INC.

59304 $2,394.90WATER WALKERS INC

$6,623.08Total for 250 - FOOD SERVICES

266 - TUITION REIMBURSEMENT
0 $1,332.00MARSTELLER, ASHLEIGH N 

$1,332.00Total for 266 - TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

301 - OTHER DEBT SERVICE FUND -
QZAB
59273 $73,129.00BAC LEASING SVC AGENT FOR

0 $71,428.57CAPITAL ONE EQUIPMENT FINANCE

$144,557.57Total for 301 - OTHER DEBT SERVICE FUND
- QZAB

304 - JCI PROJECT
59278 $60,550.00US BANK ST PAUL

$60,550.00Total for 304 - JCI PROJECT

405 - GO - CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION
59302 $224.00RESIN ARCHITECTURE LLC

$224.00Total for 405 - GO - CAPITAL
CONSTRUCTION

Yamhill-Carlton School District No. 1

Approval of Bills Report

Criteria: 07/01/2021From Check Date: 07/31/2021To: ALLVoucher:
900To:

Fiscal Year:   2021-2022

Report Sort: FUND

Check Number Vendor Amount

100From Fund: Page Break Exclude Invoice
Description

Printed: 08/09/2021 9:08:10 AM rptApprovalOfBillsCheckReport: 2021.1.18 Page: 3



Yamhill-Carlton School District No. 1

Approval of Bills Report

Criteria: 07/01/2021From Check Date: 07/31/2021To: ALLVoucher:
900To:

Fiscal Year:   2021-2022

Report Sort: FUND

Check Number Vendor Amount

100From Fund: Page Break Exclude Invoice
Description

End of Report

$590,425.43Grand Total:

Printed: 08/09/2021 9:08:10 AM rptApprovalOfBillsCheckReport: 2021.1.18 Page: 4



8



English Learners in 
Oregon 
Annual Report 2019-20 
June 2021 

 

 

  

9



English Learners in Oregon 

1 
 

Table of Contents 
Acknowledgements ............................................................................................ 3 

Executive Summary ............................................................................................ 4 

English Learners in Oregon’s K-12 schools .................................................................................................... 4 

Participation in targeted programs ............................................................................................................... 5 

Progress towards English Language Proficiency ........................................................................................... 5 

Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics .................................................. 5 

Attendance.................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Graduation .................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Post-secondary enrollment ........................................................................................................................... 6 

Instructional Programming for Current English Learners ............................................................................. 6 

District revenues and expenditures .............................................................................................................. 6 

Introduction ........................................................................................................ 7 

Why this report? ............................................................................................................................................... 7 

Structure of this report ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners in Oregon in 2019-20 ..................... 9 

Current and Former English Learners ............................................................................................................... 9 

Characteristics of current English Learners in Oregon ................................................................................... 10 

The majority of current English Learners were in the elementary grades. ................................................ 10 

English Learner enrollment was not uniform across Oregon districts. ....................................................... 11 

The number of recent arrivers increased in 2019-20 after declines since 2016-17. .................................. 12 

In 2019-20, 866 current English learners had experienced interruptions in their education. ................... 14 

Current English learners across the state spoke 160 unique home languages. ......................................... 15 

The vast majority of current English learners were Latina/o/x. ................................................................. 17 

Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs ................................................... 18 

Free or Reduced Price Meals .......................................................................................................................... 18 

Special Education ............................................................................................................................................ 18 

Ever English learners and never English learners received special education services and supports at 
about the same rate. .................................................................................................................................. 19 

The percentage of current English learners receiving special education increased in 2019-20. ................ 19 

Migrant Education .......................................................................................................................................... 20 

10



English Learners in Oregon 

2 
 

Almost 14 percent of current English learners received services from Migrant Education Programs in 
2019-20. ...................................................................................................................................................... 20 

Talented and Gifted ........................................................................................................................................ 21 

Current English Learners were rarely eligible for TAG Programs. .............................................................. 21 

Section 3: Language Development and Academic Outcomes for English Learners
 ......................................................................................................................... 23 

Progress towards English Language Proficiency ............................................................................................. 23 

Long-term current English learners made up 22.7 percent of all current English learners. ....................... 23 

A little more than 20 percent of current English learners receiving special education services and 
supports developed English language proficiency in five years. ................................................................ 23 

Student Academic Outcomes in Language Arts and Mathematics ................................................................. 24 

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond . 25 

Attendance ..................................................................................................................................................... 25 

On-Track to Graduate ..................................................................................................................................... 25 

Four-Year Graduation ..................................................................................................................................... 25 

Former English learners graduated at rates similar to or better than never English learners; however, 
substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four years. ....................................................... 25 

Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy ....................................................................................................................... 26 

In 2019-20, the majority of students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy were never English learners. ..... 27 

Students earned the Seal of Biliteracy for their knowledge of 20 different partner languages; however, 
Spanish was the most common partner language. .................................................................................... 28 

Eleven districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy. ................................................... 28 

Post-Secondary Enrollment ............................................................................................................................ 29 

Never English learners were more likely to enroll in post-secondary education institutions than current 
English learners; however, former English learners had comparable post-secondary enrollment rates as 
never English learners. ................................................................................................................................ 29 

Section 5: Instructional Programming for Current English Learners ................... 30 

Most current English learners received English language instruction, supports, and services in sheltered 
instruction programs. ................................................................................................................................. 31 

Section 6: State Revenues and Expenditures for Current English Learners ........ 32 

References ........................................................................................................ 34 

 

11



English Learners in Oregon 

3 
 

Acknowledgements 

Office of the Director  
W. Joshua Rew, Psychometrician  
Evan Fuller, Research Analyst 
 
Office of Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion 
Taffy Carlisle, Education Program Specialist 
 
Office of Teaching, Learning, and Assessment 
Kim Miller, Education Program Specialist 

  

12



English Learners in Oregon 

4 
 

Executive Summary 

ORS 327.016 directs the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) to prepare an annual report on English 
learner program funding and student outcomes. The report’s intention is to describe the population of 
English Learners in Oregon and provide a summary of district and state progress towards meeting their needs 
and objectives. This report is also available on the ODE website. Any member of the public can contact the 
Government Relations and External Affairs Director to request a copy of this report.  

Definitions 
ORS 327.016 describes students who receive English language instruction, supports, and services as part of 
an English language development (ELD) program as English learners. While these students are learning 
English in an ELD program, the English learner label only focuses on a singular dimension (i.e., learning 
English) and does not reflect the linguistic and cultural assets of the students (Garcia, 2009). Thus, although 
this report will use the English Learner label in order to comply with ORS 327.016, we believe these students 
are multilingual and acknowledge that their linguistic and cultural heritage matters. 

The ODE annually reports four groups of English learners: current, former, ever, and never English learners. 
Current English learners are multilingual students who were learning English in an ELD program during the 
2019-20 school year1. Former English learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English 
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to the 2019-20 school year. Ever English learners are the 
combination of both current and former English learners. Finally, never English learners are monolingual 
English or multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and 
services in an ELD program before or during the 2019-20 school year. 

English Learners in Oregon’s K-12 schools 
As of May 1, 2020, 578,115 students enrolled in Oregon public schools and districts. Among those students, 
9.3 percent were current English learners (53,488 students), 8.7 percent were former English learners (50,480 
students), and 82.0 percent were never English learners (474,147 students). Both current and former English 
learners (i.e., ever English learners and 18.0 percent of students) were an incredibly diverse student 
population in 2019-20. These students brought a rich linguistic and cultural heritage to their classrooms, 
schools, and communities. 

The distribution of current English learners were not similar across grade levels, schools, or districts in 
Oregon during the 2019-20 school year. The district with the highest percentage of current English learners 
was Woodburn School District with 34.6 percent of its student population learning English in an ELD program 
as of May 1, 2020. On the other hand, more than 70 percent of Oregon districts either had no current English 
learners or very few (i.e., less than 5 percent of all students). 

Other key features of the English learner student population in the 2019-20 school year include the following: 

                                                             
1 Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction, 
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English 
language instruction, supports, and services.  

13

https://www.oregon.gov/ode/reports-and-data/LegReports/Pages/default.aspx


English Learners in Oregon 

5 
 

• In 2019-20, the majority of current English learners were in elementary grades (while the majority of 
former English learners were in high school grades). 

• The number of recently arrived current English learners (i.e., new immigrant students) increased 
slightly in 2019-20 after declining the previous two years. 

• Spanish was the predominant home language of current English learners (spoken by 75.4 percent), 
but overall there were 160 unique home languages spoken by current English learners. 

• Approximately 75.6 percent of current English learners were Latino/a/x, and 28 percent of Latino/a/x 
students were current English learners. Nearly the same percentage of Native Hawaiian/Pacific 
Islander students (25.8 percent) were current English learners. 

Participation in targeted programs 
The report also examines the involvement of English learners in targeted federal and state programs: free or 
reduced price meals, special education, migrant education, and the talented and gifted (TAG) program. 

Key findings include the following: 

• A higher percentage of both current and former English learners were eligible for free or reduced 
price meals as compared to students who were never English Learners. 

• A higher percentage of current English learners received special education services and supports as 
compared to never English learners; however, ever English learners and never English learners had 
similar percentages of students receiving special education services and supports. 

• Almost 13.5 percent of current English learners received services in migrant education programs. 
• While across Oregon 7.6 percent of never English learners participated in TAG programs, this figure 

was 6.0 percent for former English learners and just 0.4 percent for current English learners. 

Progress towards English Language Proficiency 
Data representing the progress current English learners are making towards achieving English language 
proficiency were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is due to the 
State of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of statewide summative 
assessments and data collections that support the calculation of this measure at the district and state levels). 

Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics 
Data representing the language arts and mathematics achievement of current, former, ever, and never 
English learners were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is due to 
the State of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of statewide summative 
assessments and data collections that support the calculation of this measure at the district and state levels).  

Attendance 
Data representing the percentage of current, former, ever, and never English learners who regularly attend 
school were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is due to the State 
of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of data collections that either capture 
the specific data or support the calculation of this measure at the district and state levels).  

14



English Learners in Oregon 

6 
 

Graduation 
Data representing the percentage of current, former, ever, and never English learners who were on track to 
graduate in ninth grade were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability 
is due to the State of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of data collections 
that either capture the specific data or support the calculation of this measure at the district and state 
levels).  

Former English learners graduated at rates similar to or better than never English learners; however, 
substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four years. 

Post-secondary enrollment 
Post-secondary enrollment rates for former English learners were very similar to those of never English 
learners; in both cases, about 62.0 percent of high school graduates enroll in college within 16 months of 
graduation. On the other hand, current English learners were less likely to enroll in post-secondary education 
institutions. About 42.0 percent of current English learners went on to college within 16 months of high 
school graduation.  

Instructional Programming for Current English Learners 
Program models are different ways that current English learners can receive instruction that helps them 
develop their English language proficiency and learn grade-level content. About 19.2 percent of current 
English learners participated in bilingual or dual-language programs in 2019-20. Most current English learners 
(75.2 percent) participated in sheltered instruction programs. 

District revenues and expenditures 
As in reports from previous years, this report summarizes the ratio of expenditures to revenues. In 2019-20, 
that ratio was 0.98, slightly less than it was in 2018-19. 

 

  

15



English Learners in Oregon 

7 
 

Introduction 

In 2019-20, students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an English language 
development (ELD) program as well as students who exited the ELD program prior to the 2019-20 school year 
made up 18.0 percent of all students in Oregon public schools and districts (as of the first school day in May 
2020). They form a vital part of our student communities and bring a variety of cultural and linguistic assets 
that enrich our schools and districts. This report describes this diverse population of students, examines their 
academic progress and achievement, and summarizes information about key aspects of the education they 
receive in our state. 

Why this report? 
ORS 327.016 directs the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) to prepare an annual report on English 
learner program funding and student outcomes. The report’s intention is to describe the population of 
English Learners in Oregon and provide a summary of district and state progress towards meeting their needs 
and objectives in ELD programs. ORS 327.016 requires ODE to include the following information in the annual 
report: 

• English learner student demographics. 
• Length of participation in ELD programs. 
• Participation in special education and related services.  
• Other information identified by the ODE. 

In addition, the annual report must include the following financial information: 

• Allocations to each school district from the State School Fund for students enrolled in ELD programs. 
• The extent to which districts expend these allocations for students enrolled in ELD programs. 
• The categories of expenditures for ELD program funding. 

Each annual report looks back at the prior school year, which for this year is the 2019-20 school year. This 
report will be available on the ODE website, submitted to House and Senate Education Committees, and 
provided to district school boards. State law requires the report to be available to the public at the district’s 
main office and on the district’s website.  

Definitions 
ORS 327.016 describes students who receive English language instruction, supports, and services as part of 
an ELD program as English learners. While these students are learning English in an ELD program, the English 
learner label only focuses on a singular dimension (i.e., learning English) and does not reflect the linguistic 
and cultural assets of the students (Garcia, 2009). Thus, although this report will use the English Learner label 
in order to comply with ORS 327.016, we believe these students are multilingual and acknowledge that their 
linguistic and cultural heritage matters. 

The ODE annually reports four groups of English learners: current, former, ever, and never English learners. 
Current English learners are multilingual students who were learning English in an ELD program during the 

16



English Learners in Oregon 

8 
 

2019-20 school year2. Former English learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English 
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to the 2019-20 school year. Ever English learners are the 
combination of both current and former English learners. Finally, never English learners are monolingual or 
multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in 
an ELD program before or during the 2019-20 school year. 

Structure of this report 
This report consists of six sections: 

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners 

Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs 

Section 3: Language Development and Academic Achievement 

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond 

Section 5: Instructional Programming for Current English Learners 

Section 6: State Revenues and Expenditures for English Learners 

Several aspects of this year’s report differ from the reports the ODE issued in previous years. For example, 
where appropriate, this report provides comparisons to never English learners (i.e., students not eligible to 
receive services from an ELD program). Furthermore, in addition to describing statewide patterns, in some 
cases the report indicates which districts serve high percentages of certain types of students (e.g., students 
participating in migrant education programs). 

  

                                                             
2 Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction, 
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English 
language instruction, supports, and services.  

17



English Learners in Oregon 

9 
 

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners in Oregon in 2019-20 

As of May 1, 2020, 578,115 students enrolled in Oregon public schools and districts. Among those students, 
9.3 percent were current English learners (53,488 students), 8.7 percent were former English learners (50,480 
students), and 82.0 percent were never English learners (474,147 students). Both current and former English 
learners were an incredibly diverse student population in 2019-20 (representing 18.0 percent of all students). 
These students brought a rich linguistic and cultural heritage to their classrooms, schools, and communities. 
This section summarizes the demographics of Oregon’s English learner population, considering grade levels, 
interruptions in formal education among newcomer immigrant students, and racial, ethnic, and linguistic 
diversity.  

Current and Former English Learners  
Current English Learners are multilingual students who are learning English in an ELD program during the 
school year3. They receive English language instruction, supports, and services because they are not 
proficient in English. The reason for the lack of English proficiency is because English is not their native 
language or they come from an environment where a language other than English has had a significant 
impact on their English proficiency. In 2019-20, 53,488 of Oregon’s 578,115 K-12 students, or 9.3 percent, 
were current English learners4 (see figure 1).  

Figure 1. Percentage of all Oregon students who were current English Learners (2015-16 to 2019-20). 

9.5

10.2
9.1 8.9 9.3

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
 

A similar number of students in 2019-20 (50,480 or 8.7 percent) were former English learners. Former English 
learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to 
the 2019-20 school year. Research does suggest, however, that former English learners may still need 

                                                             
3 Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction, 
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English 
language instruction, supports, and services.  
4 The data for this portion of the report relies on student enrollments as of the first school day in May 2020. 

18



English Learners in Oregon 

10 
 

support to develop high levels of proficiency in academic English (i.e., the language students need in order to 
be successful in school; see de Jong 2004; Flores, Batalova & Fix, 2012).  

Comparisons between current, former, ever, and never English learners are useful to understand the 
experiences and outcomes of current English learners. Note that ever English learners are the combination of 
current and former English learners, and never English learners are monolingual English or multilingual 
students who are not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD 
program before or during the school year. Without these comparisons, it can be easy to underestimate the 
achievement of current English Learners, who tend to perform at lower levels while still developing English. 
However, once current English learners attain English language proficiency, they often perform academically 
at significantly higher levels (Hopkins, Thompson, Linquanti, Hakuta, & August, 2013).  

Figure 2 shows the change in the count of current, former, and ever English learners in Oregon over the last 
five school years. In general, it displays a slightly growing population of ever English learners in Oregon, 
peaking in 2016-17 at 103,605 and, after declining for a couple years, increasing slightly to 103,968 students 
in 2019-20. 

Figure 2. Number of current, former, and ever English Learners in Oregon (2015-16 to 2019-20). 

 

54,286 58,275
51,967 51,124 53,488

45,309 45,330
50,586 51,673 50,480

99,595

103,605

102,553

102,797

103,968

      0

 20,000

 40,000

 60,000

 80,000

100,000

120,000

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Current English Learners Former English Learners Ever English Learners

Characteristics of current English Learners in Oregon 
The majority of current English Learners were in the elementary grades. 
Although there were current English learners at every grade level, approximately two-thirds (65.7 percent) 
were in kindergarten through fifth grade. Far fewer current English learners were in middle school (grades 6-
8; 18.8 percent) or in high school (grades 9-12; 15.5 percent). Figure 3 shows the percent of current and 
former English learners by grade in 2019-20. As the grade level increases from kindergarten to twelfth grade, 
the percent of current English learners decreases as they attain English proficiency and exit their ELD 
programs (subsequently, this results in an increase of former English learners). 

19



English Learners in Oregon 

11 
 

Figure 3. Comparison of the percentage of current and former English learners by grade in 2019-20. 

 

English Learner enrollment was not uniform across Oregon districts. 
Oregon has 197 school districts. In 2019-20, 149 districts provided English language instruction, supports, and 
services to current English learners; however, 48 districts did not have any current English learner 
enrollments. An additional 51 districts provided English language instruction, supports, and services to 
between 1 and 19 current English learners. This suggests these districts have too few current English learners 
to be eligible for specific improvement efforts under state and federal accountability initiatives. 

Figure 4 shows the distribution of current English learners across Oregon districts. The total number of 
current English learners in 2019-20 is on the x-axis. While most districts are at the left hand corner, with zero 
or few current English learners, there were six districts with more than 2,000 current English learners. As 
some of those districts were larger, however, even large populations of current English learners might make 
up fewer than 10 or 15 percent of the student population (see the y-axis). Thus, in 2019-20, districts 
experienced very different situations in terms of both the number of current English learners and/or the 
percentage of their student population who received English language instruction, supports, and services.  

20



English Learners in Oregon 

12 
 

Figure 4. Comparison of the number and percentage of current English learners by district in 2019-20. 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000
 

This variation across districts is also evident in table 1, which shows the six districts with the highest numbers 
of current English learners (i.e., Salem-Keizer, Beaverton, Portland, Hillsboro, Reynolds, and David Douglas), 
as well as the five districts with the highest percentage of current English learners (i.e., Woodburn, Umatilla, 
Nyssa, Reynolds, and Jefferson County). Note that only Reynolds appears in both lists. Moreover, many of 
those districts with the highest percentage of current English learners have comparatively small numbers of 
students.  

Table 1. Districts with the highest number and percentage of current English learners in 2019-20. 

District Name Number of  
Current English Learners 

Percentage of  
Current English Learners 

Salem-Keizer    7,223 17.5% 
Beaverton    5,261 12.9% 
Portland    3,969   8.2% 
Hillsboro    3,486 17.4% 
Reynolds    2,892 26.8% 
David Douglas    2,103 21.7% 
Woodburn    1,959 34.6% 
Nyssa        333 28.1% 
Umatilla        432 30.2% 
Jefferson County       635 23.7% 

 

The number of recent arrivers increased in 2019-20 after declines since 2016-17. 
The term recent arrivers refers to students who were born outside of the U.S. and Puerto Rico, and who have 
been educated in the U.S. for fewer than three cumulative years (i.e., these students are recent immigrants). 
They can be current, former, or never English learners; however, the majority are current English learners.   

21



English Learners in Oregon 

13 
 

In 2019-20, 4,927 current English learners were recent arrivers. This number is very similar to the prior year’s 
count (4,667) but is certainly a sharp reduction from 2016-17 (6,263; see figure 5). 

Figure 5. Number of current English learners who were recent arrivers in Oregon (2015-16 to 2019-20). 

4,809

6,263

4,685

4,667

4,926

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
 

Most recent arrivers (60.4 percent) were in the elementary grades, while 17.8 percent were in grades 6-8 and 
21.9 percent were in high school. Current English learners who are recent arrivers in middle and high school 
generally face particularly big challenges, since they have to learn the language while also using English-
language textbooks and lectures to learn the content of their courses in a variety of subject areas (Short & 
Fitzsimmons, 2007). Recent arrivers in the secondary grades are known as adolescent newcomers, and 
districts sometimes design specialized programs to serve their unique language and cultural needs. 

Statewide, the total number of current English learners who were adolescent newcomers in 2019-20 was 
1,953. Not all districts provided English language instruction, support, and services to adolescent newcomers; 
however, six Oregon districts had at least 100 such students in 2019-20 (see table 2). 

Table 2. Districts providing English language instruction, support, and services to at least 100 adolescent 
newcomers in 2019-20. 

District 
Number of Adolescent Newcomers 

(Recently Arrived Current English Learners in 
Middle or High School) 

Beaverton 240 
Salem-Keizer 215 
David Douglas 141 
Portland 140 
Reynolds 140 
Hillsboro   86 

 

22



English Learners in Oregon 

14 
 

In 2019-20, 866 current English learners had experienced interruptions in their 
education. 
Some current and former English learners had their education interrupted or received limited formal 
education before arriving in the U.S. school system. Often, these were immigrant or refugee students who 
had spent time in refugee camps or whose process of immigration to the U.S. prevented them from attending 
school for a time. These students are known as students with limited or interrupted formal education (often 
abbreviated as SIFE or SLIFE). 

Students are SLIFE if they are immigrant students or English learners who enter school in the U.S. after grade 
two and experience all of the following:  

a. have at least two fewer years of schooling than their peers of the same age,  
b. function at least two years below grade level expectations in reading and mathematics, and  
c. be preliterate in their native language.  

SLIFE students face unique circumstances. In addition to having missed at least two years of schooling, some 
arrive having experienced significant trauma. Schools need to find ways to serve SLIFE students without 
placing them in classes with younger students, since forming relationships with peers, including never English 
learner peers, is a factor that appears to improve academic outcomes (Browder 2014).  

The ODE began collecting data on the number of students with limited or interrupted formal education in 
2015-16. For the 2019-20 school year, districts reported 866 current English learners with limited or 
interrupted formal education (about 1.6 percent of all current English learners). As figure 6 illustrates, the 
number of students with limited or interrupted formal education increased from 2015-16 to 2018-19 but 
decreased slightly in 2019-20.  

Figure 6. Number of current English learners with an interrupted formal education (2015-16 to 2019-20). 

399

660 666
885

866

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1,000

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
 

Most students with limited or interrupted formal education were in high school (58.7 percent). Another 24.7 
percent were in the middle school grades (grades 6-8), and only 16.6 percent were in the elementary grades. 

23



15 

English Learners in Oregon 

In 2019-20, the distribution of current English learners with limited or interrupted formal education was not 
uniform across Oregon districts. Instead, current English learners with limited or interrupted formal 
education were, for the most part, concentrated in a few districts. Nine districts in Oregon, identified in table 
3, provided English language instruction, supports, and services to at least 20 current English learners with 
limited or interrupted formal education in 2019-20. These nine districts alone enrolled over 80 percent of all 
SLIFE students in Oregon. Note that five of the six districts serving many adolescent newcomers (see table 2) 
also enroll significant numbers of current English learners with interrupted formal education (i.e., Portland, 
Salem-Keizer, Beaverton, Reynolds, and Hillsboro). 

Table 3. Districts serving at least 20 current English learners with interrupted formal education in 2019-20. 

District Number of Current English Learners with 
Limited or Interrupted Formal Education 

Hillsboro    167 
Hermiston    107 
Beaverton    105 
Portland    103 
Reynolds   103 
Morrow   34 
South Lane   29 
Salem-Keizer  27 
Forest Grove SD 15  22 

Current English learners across the state spoke 160 unique home languages. 
Statewide, current English learners spoke about 160 different languages at home. By far the most prevalent 
home language among Oregon current English learners was Spanish, spoken at home by 75.4 percent of all 
current English learners. The four next most common languages were Russian, Vietnamese, Chinese, and 
Arabic. Taken together, these top five languages represent 84.3 percent of home languages among current 
English learners (see table 4). In recent years, the number of current English learners speaking Somali, 
Mesoamerican languages, and other languages are increasing. The ODE is updating the way districts report 
the home languages of current English learners to allow for more accurate reporting in the future. 

24



English Learners in Oregon 

16 
 

Table 4. Most prevalent home languages among current English learners in 2019-20. 

Language Number of Current English 
Learners with this Language 

Percentage of Current English 
Learners with this Language 

Spanish 40,342 75.4% 
Russian   1,563   2.9% 
Vietnamese   1,208   2.3% 
Chinese   1,106   2.1% 
Arabic      881   1.7% 
English5      690   1.3% 
Somali      629   1.2% 
Chuukese    596 1.1% 
Ukrainian    416 0.8% 
Japanese    358 0.7% 
Mayan languages    352 0.7% 
Marshallese    341 0.6% 

 

Home languages other than Spanish tend to concentrate in a few districts. Figure 6 provides a map 
illustrating the number of different home languages in different Oregon districts. A few districts, mostly in the 
Portland metropolitan area and Salem, provide English language instruction, supports, and services to 
students with over 60 unique home languages.  

Figure 7. Geographic distribution current English learner home languages across Oregon districts during 
2019-20. 

 

                                                             
5 All 690 current English Learners with English as the home language were American Indian/Alaska Native students. 

25



English Learners in Oregon 

17 
 

The vast majority of current English learners were Latina/o/x. 
Of the 53,488 current English learners in Oregon during the 2019-20 school year, 40,457 (75.6 percent) were 
Latina/o/x. Slightly over 16.9 percent were White and Asian, while smaller percentages were Black/African 
American, Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, American Indian/Alaska Native, and Multi-Racial (see figure 8).  

Figure 8. Percentage of current English learners by race/ethnicity in 2019-20. 

 

1.0

1.1

2.3

3.0

8.1

8.7

75.6

0.0 10.0 20.0 30.0 40.0 50.0 60.0 70.0 80.0

Multi-Racial

American Indian/Alaska Native

Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander

Black/African American

White

Asian

Latina/o/x

It is important to note that most Latina/o/x students in Oregon were not current English learners. In fact, 
according to figure 9, only 28 percent of Latina/o/x students were current English learners in 2019-20. 
Moreover, 25.8 percent of Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander students were current English learners.  

Figure 9. Percentage of each racial/ethnic group who were current English learners in 2019-20. 

 

  

1.1

1.3

8.8

10.8

18.5

25.8

28.0

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0

White

Multi-Racial

American Indian/Alaska Native

Black/African American

Asian

Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander

Latina/o/x

26



English Learners in Oregon 

18 
 

Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs 

Schools and districts deliver a range of programs that aim to address the needs of particular groups of 
students. These include free or reduced price meals, special education, migrant education, and TAG 
programs. Most of these programs receive some federal funding; however, TAG programs receive only state 
funding. This section of the report describes the participation of English learners in each of these programs 
during the 2019-20 school year. 

Free or Reduced Price Meals 
Students who come from low-income families (those earning below 185 percent of the federal poverty line) 
are eligible for free or reduced price meals. The percentage of students receiving free or reduced price meals 
is an estimate of the level of poverty or economic disadvantage in a school. It is an imprecise measure, since 
some eligible students and families never apply to the program; however, it provides the best data currently 
available to compare poverty and economic disadvantage levels across schools and districts. 

According to figure 10, current and former English learners are much more likely than never English learners 
to be eligible for free or reduced price meals. This suggests that households for current and former English 
learners are more likely to experience poverty and economic disadvantage. Overall, 86.6 percent of current 
English learners come from economically disadvantaged households.  

Figure 10. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners receiving free or reduced price meals 
in 2019-20. 

 

46.3

77.8

86.6

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Never English Learners

Former English Learners

Current English Learners

Special Education 
Students who are current English learners and receive special education services and supports are known as 
dual-identified students, since they receive instruction, supports, and services from two programs (i.e., 
English language and special education).  

27



English Learners in Oregon 

19 
 

There is concern in the field about the difficulty of accurately identifying current English learners who need 
special education services and supports. Schools may incorrectly identify current English learners as having a 
learning disability when, in fact, it is their developing English proficiency that adversely influences their 
educational progress. On the other hand, some schools may overlook genuine disabilities, assuming that 
current English learners just need more time to learn English. Both identification challenges are prevalent not 
only in Oregon but across the United States (Artiles & Ortiz, 2002; Hamayan, Marler, Sanchez Lopez & 
Damico, 2007). 

Ever English learners and never English learners received special education services 
and supports at about the same rate.  
As figure 11 illustrates, a far higher rate of current English learners (21.0 percent) received special education 
services and supports as compared to former (8.0 percent) and never English learners (15.1 percent). 
However, the percentage of ever English learners (the combination of current and former English learners) 
receiving services and supports is very similar to that for never English learners.  

Figure 11. Percentage of current, former, never, and ever English learners receiving special education 
services and supports in 2019-20. 

 

8.0

14.7

15.1

21.0

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0

Former English Learners

Ever English Learners

Never English Learners

Current English Learners

The percentage of current English learners receiving special education increased in 
2019-20. 
In 2019-20, 11,228 current English learners (21.0 percent) were receiving special education supports and 
services. The number of current English learners receiving special education services and supports in 2019-20 
represents a very slight decrease from the year before, when 21.3 percent of current English learners 
received special education services and supports (see figure 12). 

28



English Learners in Oregon 

20 
 

Figure 12. Percentage of current English learners receiving special education services and supports (2015-
16 to 2019-20). 

 

19.4

18.4

20.6 21.3

21.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Most dual-identified students in 2019-20 had a specific learning disability (3,725 students) or a speech or 
language impairment (3,399 students) as their primary disability.6 Other primary disabilities, in order of 
frequency in 2019-10, include other health impairments, autism, intellectual disability, emotional 
disturbance, hearing impairment, orthopedic impairment, visual impairment, and traumatic brain injury. 

Migrant Education 
Some English learners also participate in migrant education programs. Students are eligible for migrant 
education programs if their parent or guardian is a migratory worker and they move from one school district 
to another during the regular school year. Many migrant children live in poverty, and when they move, they 
confront the challenges of having to adjust to different teachers with different instructional approaches and 
materials, as well as building new social connections. The intention of migrant education programs is to 
ensure that migrant children receive the support that addresses their unique situation.  

Almost 14 percent of current English learners received services from Migrant 
Education Programs in 2019-20. 
Across the state in the 2019-20, 7,231 current English learners participated in migrant education programs. 
That number translates to 13.5 percent of all current English learners. It also means that approximately half 
(50.5 percent) of the 14,332 students in migrant education programs were current English Learners.7 

                                                             
6 A specific learning disability refers to a disorder in one or more of the basic psychological processes involved in 
understanding or using language that may manifest itself in difficulties in listening, thinking, speaking, reading, 
writing, spelling, or doing math calculations. A speech or language impairment refers to a communication disorder 
such as stuttering, impaired articulation, or a language or voice impairment that adversely affects a students’ 
learning or educational performance. 
7 The data for this portion of the report relies on student enrollments as of the first school day in May 2020. 

29



English Learners in Oregon 

21 
 

Approximately 150 districts received federal funds in the 2019-20 school year to support their migrant 
education programs. Districts that did not receive federal funding in 2019-20 did not have eligible students 
enrolled in their schools and programs. Ten districts had more than 200 current English learners participating 
in their migrant education program in 2019-20 (see table 5). 

Table 5. Districts with over 200 current English learners participating in migrant education programs in 
2019-20. 

District Number of Current ELs 
in Migrant Education District Number of Current ELs 

in Migrant Education 
Salem-Keizer     813 Nyssa     278 
Hillsboro     634 Canby    263 
Woodburn     474 Hood River County     230 
Medford     398 Beaverton     222 
Forest Grove     326 Hermiston     217 

 

Talented and Gifted 
The state requires that all school districts establish policies and procedures to identify students to participate 
in TAG programs. These students may have high general intelligence and/or demonstrate unusual academic 
ability in one or more particular areas. State law requires districts to develop a plan to provide programs and 
services beyond regular school programs in order to ensure that eligible students can develop and realize 
their potential.  

Correctly identifying students for TAG programs and providing specialized services is important because 
these students may have both unique talents and face unique challenges. For example, some TAG students 
struggle with perfectionism and the ability to cope with failure. Others engage only selectively at school and 
have high levels of absenteeism. Recent findings from the ODE suggest that approximately 10 percent of TAG 
students drop out of high school (Allen, 2016).  

Current English Learners were rarely eligible for TAG Programs. 
According to figure 13, 7.6 percent of never English learners (36,264 students) were eligible for TAG programs 
in 2019-20. While 6.0 percent of former English learners were eligible (3,035 students) and 3.2 percent of 
ever English learners were eligible (3,275 students), less than 1 percent of current English learners were 
eligible for TAG programs in 2019-20 (240 students). Never English learners were 19 times more likely to be 
eligible than current English learners in 2019-20 (7.6 percent ÷ 0.4 percent = 19).  

30



English Learners in Oregon 

22 
 

Figure 13. Percentage of current, former, ever, and never English learners who participates in a TAG 
program in 2019-20. 

 

0.4

3.2

6.0

7.6

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Current English Learners

Ever English Learners

Former English Learners

Never English Learners

31



English Learners in Oregon 

23 
 

Section 3: Language Development and Academic Outcomes for English Learners  

Students who are current English learners have to develop proficiency in English. In addition and at the same 
time, they must learn all the same academic content as other students in Oregon. This section of the report 
provides data about English language proficiency and academic outcomes of current English learners (with 
comparisons to former, ever, and never English learners). 

Progress towards English Language Proficiency 
Data representing the progress current English learners are making towards achieving English language 
proficiency were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is due to the 
State of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of statewide summative 
assessments and data collections that support the calculation of this measure at the district and state levels). 

Long-term current English learners made up 22.7 percent of all current English 
learners. 
Educators have concerns about the number of current English learners who do not attain English language 
proficiency and exit an ELD program within an appropriate amount of time. Current English learners who are 
unable to meet proficiency expectations after a period of time are known as long-term current English 
Learners. The ODE defines a long-term current English learner as a student who receives English language 
instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program for more than seven years. 

In 2019-20, most current English learners (77.3 percent) were not long-term current English learners; 
however, this means that 22.7 percent of current English learners received English language instruction, 
supports, and services for more than seven years. This is a concern because slower development of English 
language proficiency is highly predictive of other academic challenges (Menken & Kleyn, 2009). An important 
point to consider is the influence of a student’s disability on the development of English language proficiency. 
In 2019-20, 25.4 percent of current English learners with disabilities received English language instruction, 
supports, and services for more than seven years.  

A little more than 20 percent of current English learners receiving special education 
services and supports developed English language proficiency in five years. 
It is also useful to look at the development of English language proficiency from another angle, namely, what 
proportion of current English learners develop proficiency within a particular amount of time? 

This measure uses data for all current English learners who received English language instruction, supports, 
and services in an ELD program in 2019-20 regardless of the length, start, or end of enrollment. While most of 
the data in this report rely on the first school day in May 2020 as a snapshot, this measure includes all current 
English learners (even those not enrolled on the first school day in May 2020).    

Figure 14 addresses this question for current English learners with and without disabilities. For current 
English learners without disabilities who began receiving English language instruction, supports, and services 
on or after July 1, 2015, the probability of reclassification (i.e., attaining English language proficiency and 
exiting an ELD program) after five years is 0.60 (or, after multiplying by 100, 60 percent). That is, 60 percent 

32



English Learners in Oregon 

24 
 

of the current English learners without disabilities attained English language proficiency and exited an ELD 
program after five years. On the other hand, only 22 percent of current English learners with disabilities 
attained English language proficiency and exited an ELD program after five years. 

It is important to note that the reclassification probabilities are underestimates because not all current 
English learners had an opportunity to take the annual English language proficiency assessment in 2019-20 
due to the COVID-19 pandemic. If that opportunity were available, the probability of reclassification would be 
higher for current English learners with and without disabilities.  

Figure 14. Probability of reclassification for current English learners with and without disabilities after five 
years (July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2020). 

 

Student Academic Outcomes in Language Arts and Mathematics 
Data representing the language arts and mathematics achievement of current, former, ever, and never 
English learners were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is due to 
the State of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of statewide summative 
assessments and data collections that support the calculation of this measure at the district and state levels). 

33



English Learners in Oregon 

25 
 

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond 

This section of the report examines several important outcomes for English learners. These are attendance, 
ninth grade progress towards graduation, four-year graduation, earning a Seal of Biliteracy, and post-
secondary enrollment. 

Attendance 
Data representing the percentage of current, former, ever, and never English learners who regularly attend 
school were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is due to the State 
of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of data collections that either capture 
the specific data or support the calculation of this measure at the district and state levels).  

On-Track to Graduate 
Data representing the percentage of current, former, ever, and never English learners who were on track to 
graduate in 9th grade were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is 
due to the State of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of data collections 
that either capture the specific data or support the calculation of this measure at the district and state 
levels). 

Four-Year Graduation 
The ODE uses a cohort adjusted graduation rate to examine and monitor the percentage of students 
graduating within a specific number of years. The data for this section relies on the four-year cohort adjusted 
graduation rate for current, former, and never English learners.8  

Former English learners graduated at rates similar to or better than never English 
learners; however, substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four 
years. 
According to figure 15, former and never English learners graduate in four years at similar rates; however, 
although similar, the rate for former English learners was higher from 2014-15 to 2019-20. In some years 
(e.g., 2018-19), the four-year graduation rate for former English learners was substantially higher than the 
rate for never English learners (84.3 percent vs. 80.3 percent).  

                                                             
8 For the purposes of reporting graduation data to the public, current English learners are multilingual students 
who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any time during high 
school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive English language 
instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their parents or guardians 
waived services. Former English learners are multilingual students who attained English language proficiency and 
exited an ELD program prior to entering high school. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual English or 
multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in an 
ELD program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve. 

34



English Learners in Oregon 

26 
 

Current English learners, on the other hand, graduated in four years at substantially lower rates than former 
and never English learners; however, it is important to note that the four-year graduation rate for current 
English learners has grown considerably from 2014-15 to 2019-20 (an increase of 13.2 percentage points). 

Figure 15. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners graduating within four years (2014-15 
to 2019-20). 

 

75.3 77.9
80.0 82.5 84.3 86.1

51.2 52.9 54.9 55.8
60.2 64.6

75.0 75.5 77.2 79.2
80.3 83.1

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Former English Learners Current English Learners Never English Learners

Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy 
The Seal of Biliteracy offers recognition of the many cognitive, academic, and economic benefits of 
bilingualism. Students can earn a Seal of Biliteracy on their diplomas if they meet the following requirements: 

• meet all graduation requirements, 
• demonstrate reading and writing skills in English (the means for doing this may vary by district), and 
• score at the intermediate high level in listening, speaking, reading, and writing in a partner language. 

The data for this section relies on students who graduated in 2019-20 (and were part of the four-year cohort 
adjusted graduation rate) as the denominator in calculations. Moreover, this section will examine the count 
and percentage of current, former, and never English learners9 who earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2019-20. 

                                                             
9 For the purposes of reporting Seal of Biliteracy data in this report, current English learners are multilingual 
students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any time during 
high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive English language 
instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their parents or guardians 
waived services. Former English learners are multilingual students who attained English language proficiency and 
exited an ELD program prior to entering high school. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual English or 
multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in an 
ELD program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve. 

35



English Learners in Oregon 

27 
 

In 2019-20, the majority of students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy were never 
English learners. 
Of the 37,745 students who graduated in 2019-20, 2,006 students (or 5.3 percent) also earned the Seal of 
Biliteracy. Among those 2,006 students, 47.6 were never English learners, 45.0 percent were former English 
learners, and 7.4 percent were current English learners (see figure 16). 

Figure 16. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2019-
20 (among all students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy). 

7.4

45.0

47.6

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0 40.0 45.0 50.0

Current English Learners

Former English Learners

Never English Learners

 

According to figure 17, among former English learners who graduated in 2019-20, 16.0 percent earned the 
Seal of Biliteracy. Moreover, 10.5 percent of current English learner graduates earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 
2019-20. This means that, among ever English learners who graduated in 2019-20, 26.5 percent also earned 
the Seal of Biliteracy.  

36



English Learners in Oregon 

28 
 

Figure 17. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2019-
20 (among current, former, and never English learner graduates). 

 

3.1

10.5

16.0

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18

Never English Learners

Current English Learners

Former English Learners

Students earned the Seal of Biliteracy for their knowledge of 20 different partner 
languages; however, Spanish was the most common partner language. 
More than three-quarters of students earning the Seal of Biliteracy (81.0 percent) had Spanish as their 
partner language. The next four partner languages, in order of the number of students, were French, Chinese, 
Japanese, and Russian, all with 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy in that language. Spanish, 
Russian, and Chinese were the partner languages with the most current and former English learners earning 
the Seal of Biliteracy. On the other hand, the top three partner languages among never English learners who 
earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2019-20 were Spanish, French, and Japanese. 

Eleven districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy. 
In 2019-20, eleven districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy (see table 6). Moreover, 
among Woodburn’s students who graduated in 2019-20, 63.8 percent earned the Seal of Biliteracy. Five 
other districts in 2019-20 had 10 percent or more of their high school graduates earning the Seal of Biliteracy.  

Table 6. Districts with 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2019-2010. 

District Number 
of Students District Number 

of Students 
Portland 380 Corvallis 90 
Salem-Keizer 239 West Linn/Wilsonville 76 
Beaverton 235 Hillsboro 60 
Woodburn 213 Lake Oswego 53 
Eugene 105 Hood River 50 
North Clackamas 103   

                                                             
10 Note that the counts in this table reflect students who graduated in 2019-20 (and were part of the four-year 
cohort adjusted graduation rate) and earned the Seal of Biliteracy. There were students who earned the Seal of 
Biliteracy in 2019-20 but were part of the five-year cohort or another cohort.  

37



English Learners in Oregon 

29 
 

 

Post-Secondary Enrollment 
The ODE annually examines and publicly reports the percentage of high school graduates who enroll in post-
secondary education institutions in Oregon and across the U. S. (e.g., public and private, 2-year and 4-year, 
etc.). A post-secondary education affords students a wide range of advantages, including greater 
employment opportunities, financial security, opportunities to contribute in their community, and greater life 
satisfaction. However, it is important to be clear that enrollment in a post-secondary institution is not the 
only meaningful and advantageous post-high school opportunity available to students. Others may include 
military service, community or religious service, and competitive employment.  

The data for this measure uses students who graduated in 2017-18 (and were part of the four-year cohort 
adjusted graduation rate) as the denominator in calculations. Moreover, this portion of the report will 
examine the count and percentage of current, former, and never English learners11 who enrolled in a post-
secondary education institution within sixteen months after graduation. 

Never English learners were more likely to enroll in post-secondary education 
institutions than current English learners; however, former English learners had 
comparable post-secondary enrollment rates as never English learners.  
Figure 18 shows the post-secondary enrollment rates by graduation year for three groups of Oregon 
students. The post-secondary enrollment rates for never English learners, represented by the gray dotted 
line, ranged from 61.9 to 62.6 percent from 2012-13 to 2017-18.  

The salmon line displays the same information for students who were current English Learners. Current 
English learners enrolled in post-secondary institutions at substantially lower rates than never and former 
English learners. The post-secondary enrollment rates for current English learners annually increased from 
41.2 percent in 2012-13 to 49.2 percent in 2015-16; however, they decreased in both 2016-17 and 2017-18 
to levels similar to 2012-13. 

The black dashed line shows the post-secondary enrollment rates for former English learners. The post-
secondary enrollment rates for former English learners increased from a low of 54.2 percent in 2012-13 to a 
high of 62.4 percent in 2015-16. Moreover, since 2015-16, former English learners had post-secondary 
enrollment rates that were reasonably comparable to never English learners. 

                                                             
11 For the purposes of reporting post-secondary enrollment data in this report, current English learners are 
multilingual students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any 
time during high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive English 
language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their parents or 
guardians waived services. Former English learners are multilingual students who attained English language 
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to entering high school. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual 
English or multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and 
services in an ELD program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve. 

38



English Learners in Oregon 

30 
 

Figure 18. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners enrolling in post-secondary 
institutions within 16 months of high school graduation (2012-13 to 2017-1812). 

 

41.2
45.3

47.9 49.2
46.7

42.0

54.2 54.4
58.4

62.4
60.4 61.5

61.9 60.5 57.7
63.5 63.1 62.6

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Current English Learners Former English Learners Never English Learners

Section 5: Instructional Programming for Current English Learners 

State and federal law requires districts and schools to provide English language instruction, supports, and 
services to current English learners that ensures they have access to comprehensible content area learning 
even while they are learning English. They may accomplish this using one of five program models (see box 1.). 

Box 1. Program Models for ELs 

Newcomer programs are for newly arrived immigrant students and are designed to meet 
their academic, linguistic and transitional needs on a short-term basis (usually not longer than 
about two years). Students move from newcomer to other program models when this period 
of time is complete. 

Two-way immersion programs (sometimes called “dual language immersion programs”) aim 
to develop full bilingualism and biliteracy in English and a partner language. These programs 
enroll both native English speakers and native speakers of the partner language.  

Bilingual programs develop skills in both students’ primary language and in English. Some 
bilingual programs, known as “transitional bilingual, aim to transition ELs into English-only 
instruction, most often by mid- to late elementary school. Other programs, known as 
“developmental bilingual,” continue through elementary school or beyond and, like two-way 

                                                             
12 The year (e.g., 2012-13) represents the school year in which students graduated from high school. 

39



English Learners in Oregon 

31 
 

immersion programs, have the goal of developing full bilingualism and biliteracy. Both types 
of bilingual programs serve only ELs, not native English speakers.  

Sheltered instruction programs provide instruction in English only, but use specialized 
techniques to accommodate the linguistic needs of ELs. Some sheltered instruction classes are 
only for ELs, while others may include a mix of ELs, former ELs, and/or never ELs. 

Source: ESEA Title III Collection Variables, Definitions & Submission Rules 

The data for this portion of the report relies on student enrollments as of the first school day in May 2020. 

Most current English learners received English language instruction, supports, and 
services in sheltered instruction programs. 
In 2019-20, the majority of current English learners (75.2 percent) received English language instruction, 
supports, and services in sheltered instruction programs. Two-way immersion programs provided services to 
13.5 percent of current English learners, and bilingual programs provided services to 5.7 percent of current 
English learners (nearly all of them elementary students). Newcomer programs were very rare; only 190 
current English learners participated in them during the 2019-20 school year (see table 7). 

Table 7. Number of current English learners receiving instruction in different language models in 2019-20. 

Language Model 
Elementary 

Current English 
Learners 

Secondary 
Current English 

Learners 

K-12 
Current English 

Learners 
Sheltered Instruction 25,606 14,642 40,248 
Two-Way Immersion   5,817   1,428    7,245 
Bilingual13   2,954         81    3,035 
Newcomer        37       153       190 
    
Not Participating14       732   2,038    2,770 
    
Total 35,146 18,342 53,488 

  

                                                             
13 This category includes both transitional and developmental bilingual programs. Current data do not allow for 
accurate counts of the number of students in each type of bilingual program. 
14 “Not participating” includes current English learners whose parents declined English language instruction, 
supports, and services on their behalf and/or current English learners who did not participate in the English 
language proficiency assessment.  

40

https://www.oregon.gov/ode/schools-and-districts/grants/ESEA/EL/Documents/esea_title_iii_el_definitions.pdf


English Learners in Oregon 

32 
 

Section 6: State Revenues and Expenditures for Current English Learners 

Each year, Oregon’s State School Fund provides funding to districts through General Purpose Grants. The 
amount of the grant relies on a formula that considers the number of students in the district (known as 
average daily membership weighted or ADMw). On average, the per-pupil funding amount in 2019-20 was 
$8,423.15 In addition to this basic funding, districts receive additional state funds for each student enrolled in 
an ELD program. This amount is 0.5 × $8,423 or $4,212 per current English learner. Altogether, the state 
allocated $208,266,162 for these additional English learner funds in the 2019-20 school year. 

Figure 19 depicts the relationship between current English learner revenues the state allocated to districts via 
the State School Fund Formula and the total current English learner expenditures from the General Fund 
expressed as a ratio. Statewide, the ratio of expenditures to revenues in 2019-20 was 0.98, meaning that 
district expenditures on current English learners reflected 98 percent of the funds the state allocated to 
districts via the State School Fund Formula. Some districts spent more than this percentage (up to 365%), 
while others spent less (as little as 2%). The values on the extreme ends of the range, however, may reflect 
variations in the way that some districts report data. Some districts with few current English learners report 
revenue received from the state, but do not identify expenditures specific to current English learners, even 
though they may expend funds for English learner services. Other districts on the high end of the spending 
ratio may include expenses for dual-language programs that also educate former and never English learners, 
rather than calculating the percentage spent solely on current English learners.  

Figure 19. Ratio of current English learner expenditures to revenues across districts in 2019-20. 

 

                                                             

0.98

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

District Ratios

Statewide Ratio

15 While $8,423 is the average amount, the grant amount can vary a bit for different districts because of the way 
the formula is set up.  

41



English Learners in Oregon 

33 
 

As figure 20 illustrates, the statewide ratio increased steadily from 2014-15 to 2018-19; however, in 2019-20, 
the ratio decreased below 1.0.  

Figure 20. Ratio of statewide expenditures on current English learners to revenues (2014-15 to 2019-20). 

 

0.86

0.89

0.92
1.00

1.04

0.98

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Expenditures from the General Fund on current English learners either belong to Function 1291 (covering 
expenditures for instruction and interventions to help current English learners learn English) or Area of 
Responsibility 280 (other supports for current English learners, such as interpretation services or 
transportation). 16  

Current English learner expenditures for 2019-20 totaled $204,698,012. Districts accounted for 
approximately 78 percent of the expenditures ($159,566,770) using Function 1291 and 22 percent of the 
expenditures ($45,131,242) using Area of Responsibility 280. 

In addition to this state funding, districts with at least 74 current English learners may access federal Title III 
grants, which in 2019-20 provided an additional $134.10 per student for supplemental current English learner 
services17. A description of these federal funds is beyond the scope of this report but information on the 
grant amounts are available on the ODE website under Title III Allocations. 

  

                                                             
16 For a more detailed description of the accounting system categories, see Oregon’s Program Budgeting and 
Accounting Manual. 
17 Districts with fewer than 74 students can join other districts in a consortium to access these grants. 

42

https://www.oregon.gov/ode/schools-and-districts/grants/ESEA/EL/Pages/Funding-Grant-Information.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/ode/schools-and-districts/grants/Pages/Financial-Budgeting-and-Accounting.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/ode/schools-and-districts/grants/Pages/Financial-Budgeting-and-Accounting.aspx


English Learners in Oregon 

34 
 

References 

Allen, A. (2016). Examining best practices in gifted education to identify and serve culturally and linguistically 
diverse students. Presentation at the Oregon Association of Bilingual Educators, Happy Valley, Oregon, June 
24, 2016. 

Allensworth, E., & Evans, S. (2016). Tackling absenteeism in Chicago. Phi Delta Kappan, 98(2), 16-21.  

Artiles, A., & Ortiz. A. (Eds.). (2002). English language Learners with special education needs: Assessment, 
identification, and instruction. Washington, DC: Center for Applied Linguistics. 

Browder, C. T. (2014). English Learners with limited or interrupted formal education: Risk and resilience in 
educational outcomes. University of Maryland: dissertation. 

De Jong, E.J. (2004). After exit: Academic achievement patterns of former English language Learners. 
Education Policy Analysis Archives, 12 (50). Downloaded from https://epaa.asu.edu/ojs/article/view/205/331 

Flores, S. M., Batalova, J., & Fix, M. (2012). The Educational trajectories of English language learners in Texas. 
Washington DC: Migration Policy Institute.  

García, O. (2009). Emergent bilinguals and TESOL: What's in a name? TESOL Quarterly, 43(2), 322-326. 

Ginsburg, A., Jordan, P., & Chang, H. (2014). Absences add up: How school attendance affects student success. 
Attendance Works. Downloaded from https://www.attendanceworks.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/05/Absenses-Add-Up_September-3rd-2014.pdf 

Hamayan, E., Marler, B., Sanchez Lopez, C., & Damico, J. (2007). Special education considerations for English 
language Learners: Delivering a continuum of services. Philadelphia: Caslon.  

Hopkins, M., Thompson, K. D., Linquanti, R., Hakuta, K., & August, D. (2013). Fully accounting for English 
learner performance: A key issue in ESEA reauthorization. Educational Researcher, 42(2), 101–108. 

Menken, K., & Kleyn, T. (2009). The difficult road for long-term English Learners. Educational Leadership, 
66(7), 26-29 

Short, D. J., & Fitzsimmons, S. (2007). Double the work: Challenges and solutions to acquiring language and 
academic literacy for adolescent English language learners: A report to Carnegie Corporation of New York. 
Alliance for Excellent Education. 

43

https://epaa.asu.edu/ojs/article/view/205/331
https://www.attendanceworks.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Absenses-Add-Up_September-3rd-2014.pdf
https://www.attendanceworks.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Absenses-Add-Up_September-3rd-2014.pdf


 

 

   

Resolution 2022-04 
Authorizations for Change of Signature on Bank Accounts 

 

Yamhill Carlton High School 

Whereas, the Board of Directors of Yamhill Carlton School District has authorized the change of the 
authorizing signers on the YCHS accounts for: 

First Federal (Savings - Acct# 2685) – Remove Tina Vertner and Clint Raever and add Steve Cooper 
(Principal) and Candy Fetch (Lead Secretary) with the powers to Open any deposit or share accounts in 
the name of the association.  Tami Zigler (Director of Fiscal Services) and Scott Henderson (Associate 
Principal/Athletic Director) will remain on account. 

First Federal (Scholarship - Acct# 2657) – Remove Tina Vertner and Clint Raever and add Steve Cooper 
(Principal) and Candy Fetch (Lead Secretary) with the powers to Open any deposit or share accounts in 
the name of the association.  Tami Zigler (Director of Fiscal Services) and Scott Henderson (Associate 
Principal/Athletic Director) will remain on account. 

First Federal (Investments- Acct# 0850) – Remove Tina Vertner and Clint Raever and add Steve Cooper 
(Principal) and Candy Fetch (Lead Secretary) with the powers to Open any deposit or share accounts in 
the name of the association.  Tami Zigler (Director of Fiscal Services) and Scott Henderson (Associate 
Principal/Athletic Director) will remain on account. 

 

 
______________________________________ Dated: August 12, 2021 
Tina Vertner, Board Secretary 
 

44


	Minutes  2021 07 08
	2021 08 12 August HR Report
	July 2021 List of Bills
	Application for YCSC Budget Committee_Redacted
	Oregon English Learners Report 2019-20 Final
	Acknowledgements
	Executive Summary
	Definitions
	English Learners in Oregon’s K-12 schools
	Participation in targeted programs
	Progress towards English Language Proficiency
	Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics
	Attendance
	Graduation
	Post-secondary enrollment
	Instructional Programming for Current English Learners
	District revenues and expenditures

	Introduction
	Why this report?
	Definitions

	Structure of this report

	Section 1: Demographics of English Learners in Oregon in 2019-20
	Current and Former English Learners
	Figure 1. Percentage of all Oregon students who were current English Learners (2015-16 to 2019-20).
	Figure 2. Number of current, former, and ever English Learners in Oregon (2015-16 to 2019-20).

	Characteristics of current English Learners in Oregon
	The majority of current English Learners were in the elementary grades.
	Figure 3. Comparison of the percentage of current and former English learners by grade in 2019-20.

	English Learner enrollment was not uniform across Oregon districts.
	Figure 4. Comparison of the number and percentage of current English learners by district in 2019-20.
	Table 1. Districts with the highest number and percentage of current English learners in 2019-20.

	The number of recent arrivers increased in 2019-20 after declines since 2016-17.
	Figure 5. Number of current English learners who were recent arrivers in Oregon (2015-16 to 2019-20).
	Table 2. Districts providing English language instruction, support, and services to at least 100 adolescent newcomers in 2019-20.

	In 2019-20, 866 current English learners had experienced interruptions in their education.
	Figure 6. Number of current English learners with an interrupted formal education (2015-16 to 2019-20).
	Table 3. Districts serving at least 20 current English learners with interrupted formal education in 2019-20.

	Current English learners across the state spoke 160 unique home languages.
	Table 4. Most prevalent home languages among current English learners in 2019-20.
	Figure 7. Geographic distribution current English learner home languages across Oregon districts during 2019-20.

	The vast majority of current English learners were Latina/o/x.
	Figure 8. Percentage of current English learners by race/ethnicity in 2019-20.
	Figure 9. Percentage of each racial/ethnic group who were current English learners in 2019-20.



	Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs
	Free or Reduced Price Meals
	Figure 10. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners receiving free or reduced price meals in 2019-20.

	Special Education
	Ever English learners and never English learners received special education services and supports at about the same rate.
	Figure 11. Percentage of current, former, never, and ever English learners receiving special education services and supports in 2019-20.

	The percentage of current English learners receiving special education increased in 2019-20.
	Figure 12. Percentage of current English learners receiving special education services and supports (2015-16 to 2019-20).


	Migrant Education
	Almost 14 percent of current English learners received services from Migrant Education Programs in 2019-20.
	Table 5. Districts with over 200 current English learners participating in migrant education programs in 2019-20.


	Talented and Gifted
	Current English Learners were rarely eligible for TAG Programs.
	Figure 13. Percentage of current, former, ever, and never English learners who participates in a TAG program in 2019-20.



	Section 3: Language Development and Academic Outcomes for English Learners
	Progress towards English Language Proficiency
	Long-term current English learners made up 22.7 percent of all current English learners.
	A little more than 20 percent of current English learners receiving special education services and supports developed English language proficiency in five years.
	Figure 14. Probability of reclassification for current English learners with and without disabilities after five years (July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2020).


	Student Academic Outcomes in Language Arts and Mathematics

	Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond
	Attendance
	On-Track to Graduate
	Four-Year Graduation
	Former English learners graduated at rates similar to or better than never English learners; however, substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four years.
	Figure 15. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners graduating within four years (2014-15 to 2019-20).


	Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy
	In 2019-20, the majority of students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy were never English learners.
	Figure 16. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2019-20 (among all students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy).
	Figure 17. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2019-20 (among current, former, and never English learner graduates).

	Students earned the Seal of Biliteracy for their knowledge of 20 different partner languages; however, Spanish was the most common partner language.
	Eleven districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy.
	Table 6. Districts with 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2019-209F .


	Post-Secondary Enrollment
	Never English learners were more likely to enroll in post-secondary education institutions than current English learners; however, former English learners had comparable post-secondary enrollment rates as never English learners.
	Figure 18. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners enrolling in post-secondary institutions within 16 months of high school graduation (2012-13 to 2017-1811F ).



	Section 5: Instructional Programming for Current English Learners
	Most current English learners received English language instruction, supports, and services in sheltered instruction programs.
	Table 7. Number of current English learners receiving instruction in different language models in 2019-20.


	Section 6: State Revenues and Expenditures for Current English Learners
	Figure 19. Ratio of current English learner expenditures to revenues across districts in 2019-20.
	Figure 20. Ratio of statewide expenditures on current English learners to revenues (2014-15 to 2019-20).

	References

	Resolution 2022-04 First Federal YCHS



